
CITY OF ANNAPOLIS 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

July 9, 2012 7:30 p.m. 
 

Call to Order Mayor Cohen 
Invocation Alderwoman Finlayson 
Pledge of Allegiance  Mayor Cohen 
Roll Call City Clerk Watkins-Eldridge 
Approval of Agenda 
 

HONORARY MAYORAL CITATIONS 
Martha Wood Leadership Award Mayor Cohen 
City Council Citation to Richard Callahan Mayor Cohen 
 

PETITIONS, REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
Approval of Journal of Proceedings  

Special Meeting June 4, 2012 
Regular Meeting June 11, 2012 
Special Meeting June 18, 2012 

Reports by Committees 
Comments by the General Public 

A person appearing before the City Council with a petition, report or communication shall be limited 
to a presentation of not more than three minutes. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

O-25-12  The Time for Beginning Regular Meetings of the City Council – For the purpose of changing 
the beginning time for regular meetings of the City Council from 7:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

6/18/12 7/9/12 6/20/12 9/14/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 6/18/12   

 
LEGISLATIVE ACTION 

ORDINANCES and RESOLUTIONS  – 2nd READER 
O-51-11  Use and Redevelopment of Property in C2 Zoning Districts – For the purpose of adding 

certain provisions governing use and redevelopment of property located in a C2 Zoning District.  
For the purposes of considering amendments only. 

 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 180 Day Rule 

11/14/11 4/23/12 11/27/11 5/12/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 11/14/11 5/31/12 Unfavorable 

Economic Matters 11/14/11 5/31/12 Favorable 

Page 1



Regular Meeting of the City Council         
July 9, 2012  Page 2 

 
 

Planning Commission
11/14/11 
1/23/12 

7/21/11 
 

Favorable 
 

 
 
O-52-11  Rezoning Parcels 1244 and 1255, Grid 20, Tax Map 52A – For the purpose of rezoning 

parcels 1244 and 1255, Grid 20, Tax Map 52A to C2, “Conservation Business” Zoning District.  
For the purposes of considering amendments only. 

 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 180 Day Rule 

11/14/11 4/23/12 11/27/11 5/12/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 11/14/11 5/31/12 Unfavorable 

Economic Matters 11/14/11 5/31/12 Favorable 

Planning Commission 11/14/11 7/21/11 Favorable 

 

O-7-12  Variances for Subdivisions – For the purpose of moving the authority for granting subdivision 
variances from the Planning Commission to the Board of Appeals to comply with the Annotated 
Code of Maryland and a recent court decision; and all matters relating to variances for 
subdivisions. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 180 Day Rule 

2/27/12 6/11/12 5/4/12 8/24/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 2/27/12 6/14/12 Favorable 

Planning Commission 2/27/12 4/5/12 Favorable w/ amd. 

 
 
O-16-12  Distribution of Unsolicited Materials – For the purpose of establishing Section 11.36.025 of 

the Code of the City of Annapolis regarding the distribution of unsolicited materials.  Alderman 
Arnett requested to be added as a co-sponsor on 2nd Reader. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

4/23/12 6/11/12 5/4/12 7/27/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Public Safety 4/23/12 6/14/12 Favorable 

 
 

Page 2



Regular Meeting of the City Council         
July 9, 2012  Page 3 

 
 
R-19-12  Restoration of the Maynard-Burgess House – For the purpose of designating the signatory 

for any State of Maryland grants or easements for the restoration of the Maynard-Burgess 
House; and all matters relating to said restoration of the Maynard-Burgess House. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

5/14/12 N/A 6/20/12 8/10/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 5/14/12 6/14/12 Favorable 

Rules and City Gov’t 5/14/12 6/14/12 Favorable 

 
R-29-12 Reducing the Annual Fee For Trash Collection From Dwelling Units – For the purpose of 

reducing the annual fee for trash collection from dwelling units. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

6/18/12 N/A 6/13/12 9/14/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 6/18/12 7/2/12 Favorable 

 
 

RESOLUTIONS – 1st READER 
R-30-12 Formation of a Task Force on the Police and Fire Pension Plan and Other Post 

Employment Benefits (OPEB) – For the purpose of implementing the Finance Committee’s FY 
2013 budget recommendation by forming a task force to study cost containment and 
recommend solutions to fund the Police and Fire Pension Plan and Other Post Employment 
Benefits (OPEB) for City of Annapolis employees. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12   10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 7/9/12   

 

R-31-12 The Approval of a Community Legacy Application – For the purpose of approving the 
application and receipt of financing for Community Legacy Projects(s) at the City of Annapolis’ 
Bates Heritage Youth Development Park to be financed either directly by the Department of 
Housing and Community Development (the Department) of the State of Maryland or through 
other departments or agencies of the State of Maryland. 

Page 3



Regular Meeting of the City Council         
July 9, 2012  Page 4 

 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12   10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Housing and Human 
Welfare 

7/9/12   

 
R-32-12  Establishing the Hillman Garage Advisory Committee – For the purpose of establishing the 

Hillman Garage Advisory Committee and specifying the process for appointing members of the 
Committee. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12   10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Transportation 7/9/12   
 
R-34-12  Establishing a Fine for Violations of Distributing Unsolicited Materials – For the purpose of 

establishing a fine for violations of distributing unsolicited materials. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12   10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 7/9/12   

Public Safety 7/9/12   

 
R-35-12  Correcting the FY 2013 Fee for Reserved Dockage – For the purpose of correcting the FY 

2013 fee for reserved dockage per the City of Annapolis Harbormaster. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12   10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 7/9/12   
 
R-37-12  Authorizing the Annual Kunta Kinte Festival as an Official City of Annapolis Co-

Sponsored Event – For the purpose of authorizing the annual Kunta Kinte festival as an official 

Page 4



Regular Meeting of the City Council         
July 9, 2012  Page 5 

 
 

co-sponsored City of Annapolis event due to its importance and significance as a central 
element in our City’s history and the unique connection that Annapolis shares with Kunta Kinte. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12   10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 7/9/12   

 

 
BUSINESS and MISCELLANEOUS 

1. Approval of contract for the Chief of Police 
 

 
UPCOMING CITY COUNCIL EVENTS 

Work Session; Thursday, July 19, 2012 1:30-4:30 p.m. City Council Chambers 
Special Meeting; Monday, July 23, 2012 7:00 p.m. City Council Chambers 
 
 

Page 5



      
Jessica Cowles  
Legislative and Policy Analyst    
City of Annapolis Office of Law  
E)   JCCowles@annapolis.gov 
P)   410‐263‐1184 
F)   410‐268‐3916 

July 3, 2012 
 
TO:  The Capital Legal Notices: legalad@capgaz.com  
FROM:  Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst 
RE:  Notice of Public Hearing 
PUBLISH:  Please publish on: Sunday, July 8, 2012 and Monday, July 9, 2012 
 
Please send bill and certificate of publication to the City of Annapolis Office of Law, 93 Main Street, 3rd 
Floor, Annapolis, MD 21401. 
 
 

NOTICE OF ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Notice is hereby given that the Annapolis City Council will hold a work session on Monday, July 9, 2012 
from 6:00-7:00 p.m., in City Council Chambers, 160 Duke of Gloucester Street, Annapolis, for a 
discussion and quarterly update from the Housing Authority of the City of Annapolis.  The public may 
attend, observe, and listen to the presentations and discussion, but may not ask questions since this is a 
work session for the Council members. 

 
****************************************** 

NOTICE OF ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING 
Notice is hereby given that the Annapolis City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, July 9, 2012 
at 7:30 p.m., in City Council Chambers, 160 Duke of Gloucester Street, Annapolis, to consider: 

 
O-25-12  The Time for Beginning Regular Meetings of the City Council – For the purpose of 

changing the beginning time for regular meetings of the City Council from 7:30 p.m. to 
7:00 p.m. 

The above legislation on the City Council agenda for public hearing can be viewed on the City=s website 
at: http://www.annapolis.gov/Government/Departments/LawOffice/PendingLegis.aspx  

  

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Ordinance No. O-25-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Alderman Israel and Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

Co-Sponsored by: Alderwoman Finlayson 8 
 9 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

6/18/12   9/14/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 6/18/12   

 10 
AN ORDINANCE concerning 11 

The Time for Beginning Regular Meetings of the City Council 12 

FOR the purpose of changing the beginning time for regular meetings of the City Council from 13 
7:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. 14 

BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the Code of the 15 
City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition 16 

 Section 2.16.010 17 
 18 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 19 
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 20 

CHAPTER 2.16 – CITY COUNCIL 21 
Article I - Rules of Procedure 22 

2.16.010 - Time of meetings.  23 
The regular monthly meeting of the City Council shall take place at seven[-thirty] p.m. on the 24 
second Monday in each month except that the City Council shall have no regular monthly 25 
meeting during the month of August. Special meetings may be called by the Mayor. No public 26 
hearing before the council shall commence after ten-thirty p.m. No item of business shall be 27 
taken up or acted upon by the council unless that item is under consideration by eleven p.m. 28 
The times specified in this rule may be changed at any time by a majority vote.  29 
 30 
 31 
2.16.020 - Place of meeting.  32 
The place of meeting of the City Council shall be the room known as the council chamber of the 33 
municipal building and no meeting shall be held elsewhere except by a majority vote of all 34 
members.  35 
 36 

Page 95



O-25-12 
Page 2 

 1 
2.16.030 - Order of business.  2 
A. The order of business at all regular meetings of the City Council shall be as follows: 3 

1. Roll call; 4 
2. Approval of journal of proceedings of prior meetings; 5 
3. Petitions, reports and communications; 6 
4. Action on applications and appeals; 7 
5. Legislative action; 8 
6. Public hearings; 9 
7. Monthly reports and bills; 10 
8. Business and miscellaneous. 11 

B. The order of business at all special meetings of the City Council shall be as established by 12 
the Mayor. 13 
 14 
 15 
2.16.035 - Time limitation—Petitions, reports and communications.  16 
A person appearing before the City Council with a petition, report or communication shall be 17 
limited to a presentation of not more than five minutes. The time specified in this rule may be 18 
changed at any time by a majority vote.  19 

 20 
2.16.040 - Suspending order of business.  21 
The order of business may be suspended at any time by a majority vote.  22 
 23 
 24 
2.16.050 - Calling meeting to order—Roll call—Reading and approval of journal of last 25 
meeting.  26 
At the hour designated, the Mayor shall take the chair and call the council to order. The Mayor 27 
shall then direct the City Clerk to call the roll, and if a quorum is present, the journal of the last 28 
meeting shall be read and approved, after correction of any errors.  29 
 30 
 31 
2.16.060 - Dispensing with reading of journal.  32 
The journal shall be read only at regular meetings and at any time the reading may be 33 
dispensed with by unanimous consent.  34 
 35 
 36 
2.16.070 - Reducing motions, etc., to writing—Stating or reading motion before debate.  37 
Every motion or proposition shall be reduced to writing on the call of any member and a motion 38 
made and seconded shall be in the possession of the City Council and shall be stated by the 39 
presiding officer or read by the City Clerk before debate.  40 
 41 
 42 
2.16.080 - Demanding previous question—Limiting or extending debate.  43 
Any two members may demand the previous question and the previous question may be 44 
ordered by a majority vote. Debate may be limited or extended by a majority vote.  45 
 46 
 47 
2.16.090 - Reading, amendment and passage of ordinances, etc.  48 
A. All laws shall be enacted by ordinance. Every ordinance and every charter amendment 49 
shall be read three times by its title before a final vote is taken for its passage. However, by 50 

Page 96



O-25-12 
Page 3 

unanimous consent of the council in session, this procedure may be waived and the ordinance 1 
read two times by title only and the third reading shall not be held. No ordinance or charter 2 
amendment shall be amended except upon its second reading. Every ordinance and every 3 
charter amendment shall be read the first time at the meeting at which it is introduced, and the 4 
ordinance or charter amendment shall then lie on the table, after which it shall be read the 5 
second and third time and final action taken. All three readings of an ordinance and charter 6 
amendment shall occur during the same term of the Council.  7 
 8 
B. With the exception of referrals to the Planning Commission, all ordinances, resolutions and 9 
charter amendments shall be discharged without the necessity of a motion from any committee 10 
or commission to which it has been referred ninety days after first reading. The ordinance or 11 
charter amendment shall thereafter be placed on the agenda of the next regular City Council 12 
meeting and all subsequent Council meetings until the Council votes to postpone consideration 13 
for a specific amount of time not to exceed ninety days, or votes to adopt or defeat the 14 
legislation. All legislation referred to the Planning Commission shall be by way of the 15 
Department of Planning and Zoning which shall complete its review, make recommendations, 16 
and place the legislation on the agenda of the Planning Commission meeting that is to take 17 
place within sixty days of the first reading by the City Council. An ordinance that proposes to 18 
amend the zoning of any piece of property shall be referred to the Planning Commission and 19 
may not be placed upon a City Council agenda until the findings and recommendations of the 20 
Planning Commission have been received consistent with Chapter 21.34. Other legislation 21 
referred to the Planning Commission shall be discharged without the necessity of a motion from 22 
the Planning Commission one hundred eighty days after first reading by the City Council. The 23 
legislation shall thereafter be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and all subsequent 24 
regular meetings until the City Council votes to postpone consideration for a specific amount of 25 
time not to exceed ninety days, or votes to adopt or defeat the legislation.  26 
 27 
C. All resolutions shall be read twice by title and may be passed after the second reading. 28 
Every resolution shall be read the first time at the meeting at which it is introduced, and the 29 
resolution shall then lie on the table after which it shall be read a second time and final action 30 
taken. Both readings of a resolution shall occur during the same term of the Council.  31 
 32 
D. The foregoing notwithstanding, by a unanimous consent of the council in session, any 33 
ordinance or resolution may be passed at the meeting of the introduction.  34 
 35 
E. A fiscal impact note shall be submitted by the Finance Director on every ordinance, charter 36 
amendment, and resolution no later than the date such ordinance, charter amendment, or 37 
resolution is to be heard at public hearing. Any ordinance or resolution waiving or reducing City 38 
fees shall be referred to the Finance Committee and then lie on the table after which shall be 39 
read the second time and final action taken.  40 
 41 
F. The member or members of the City Council who have requested the drafting and 42 
introduction of a charter amendment, ordinance, or resolution shall be identified by title and 43 
name following the heading "Introduced by." The first member requesting the drafting of a 44 
specific piece of legislation may make a determination as to whether any other members of the 45 
City Council may be listed under "Introduced by" and the order in which those members are to 46 
be introduced. Any other member of the City Council who requests identification on the 47 
legislation shall be listed under the heading "Co-sponsored by" in the chronological order in 48 
which that member's request is made to the Office of Law or on the floor of the City Council.  49 

Page 97



O-25-12 
Page 4 

 1 
 2 
2.16.100 - Order of voting.  3 
All votes by the City Council on the third reader for ordinances and charter amendments and on 4 
the second reader for resolutions shall be recorded by roll call vote. All other votes shall be by 5 
voice vote unless any member of the City Council requires a recorded roll call vote. When a 6 
recorded vote is taken, the vote of each alderman/alderwoman shall be taken in rotating 7 
sequence, with the vote of the Mayor taken first. Rotation shall occur on each calendar day the 8 
Council meets to conduct business. The order specified in this rule may be changed at any time 9 
by majority vote.  10 
 11 
 12 
2.16.110 - Appeal from decision of chair.  13 
An appeal may be made from any decision of the chair. When the question is taken on 14 
sustaining the decision of the chair, if there is a majority in the affirmative, or if the vote is a tie, 15 
the decision of the chair shall be sustained. If there is a majority in the negative, the decision of 16 
the chair shall be reversed.  17 
 18 
 19 
2.16.120 - Committees.  20 
A. Following the recommendation by the Mayor made pursuant to Chapter 2.12 of this code, 21 
aldermen shall be confirmed to serve on a committee by a majority vote of the City Council.  22 
B. No committee shall have more than three aldermen as members. 23 
C. Each committee shall elect its chairman from its own membership. 24 
 25 
 26 
2.16.130 - Declaring chair vacant.  27 
The City Council by a majority vote may declare the chair vacant at any meeting if the presiding 28 
officer refuses to function in the chair's official capacity in accordance with the provisions of the 29 
Charter or this code or these rules of procedure. If the chair is declared vacant the City Council 30 
may elect a chairman pro tem who shall act as presiding officer for the duration of the meeting. 31 
This action shall not abridge the privileges of the presiding officer as a member of the body.  32 
 33 
  34 
2.16.140 - Protest of member against action of body.  35 
It shall be a matter of right and privilege to have received and entered upon the journal a protest 36 
of a member against the action of the City Council.  37 
 38 
 39 
2.16.150 - Suspension of rules.  40 
These rules may be suspended at any time for any purpose during a meeting by a unanimous 41 
vote of the members present.  42 
  43 
 44 
2.16.160 - Robert's Rules of Order.  45 
When no provision is made in this article, the rules of parliamentary practice comprised in the 46 
current edition of Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised, shall govern the City Council in all 47 
cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with the Charter, this 48 
code, or these rules of procedure.  49 
 50 
 51 

Page 98



O-25-12 
Page 5 

2.16.170 - Reconsideration.  1 
The City Council may reconsider any action it has taken, provided it is done at the same 2 
meeting or at the next succeeding meeting, and provided further that there have been no 3 
intervening vested rights. For purposes of this section, a meeting closed pursuant to Maryland 4 
State Government Article, Section 10-501, et seq. (Open Meetings Act), its substantial 5 
equivalent or successor, shall not be considered in determining the "next succeeding meeting."  6 
 7 
 8 
2.16.180 - Public hearings.  9 
A. Public Hearing Required. The Mayor shall schedule a public hearing on each ordinance 10 
passed on first reading by the City Council and on any resolution passed on first reading for 11 
which a member requests a public hearing. The hearing shall be advertised as required by law 12 
and shall be held within forty-eight days following its passage on first reading. If the City Council 13 
subsequently substantively amends an ordinance or resolution on which a hearing has been 14 
held, final action shall be postponed until a second hearing has been held, no later than forty-15 
eight days following the initial hearing. For purposes of this subsection, the City Council shall 16 
determine by a vote of the majority of its members whether or not an amendment is substantive.  17 
 18 
B. Appearance and Practice. An individual may appear in that person's own behalf; a member 19 
of a partnership may represent the partnership; a bona fide officer or representative of a 20 
corporation, trust or association may represent the corporation, trust or association; and an 21 
officer or employee of a political subdivision or body or department may represent the political 22 
subdivision, body or department. A person, firm or corporation may be represented in any 23 
proceedings by an attorney at law admitted to practice before the Court of Appeals of this State.  24 
 25 
C. Conduct of Hearings. 26 

1. The Mayor shall regulate the course of the hearing and shall rule upon procedural 27 
matters and objections made during the course of the hearing.  28 
2. All witnesses shall testify under oath to be administered by the Mayor. 29 
3. A hearing may be recessed or continued from time to time. 30 
4. Testimony and evidence shall be presented in the following order: 31 

a. Staff reports, if any; 32 
b. Findings and recommendations of boards or commissions, if any; 33 
c. Applicants; 34 
d. Persons in favor of the application; 35 
e. Persons in opposition to the application; and 36 
f. Rebuttal. 37 

5. In addition to the applicant, evidence and testimony either in favor of or in opposition 38 
to the application may be presented by:  39 

a. Owners of property within the City; 40 
b. Taxpayers of the City; 41 
c. Residents of the City; 42 
d. Any other persons not identified above whose personal or property interests may 43 
be specially affected by the granting or denial of the application; and  44 
e. Attorneys at law and experts appearing on behalf of those persons listed above. 45 

6. Any person whose personal or property interests may be specially affected by the 46 
granting or denial of the application may participate and have the same rights in the 47 
hearing as are afforded to the applicant.  48 
7. The use of any visual display or exhibit shall be conducted in such a manner as to be 49 
viewed by the City Council and, to the extent practicable, by the audience.  50 
 51 

Page 99



O-25-12 
Page 6 

D. Evidence. 1 
1. The Mayor may admit evidence which possesses probative value commonly 2 
accepted by reasonable and prudent persons in the conduct of their affairs. The Mayor 3 
shall give effect to the rules of privilege recognized by law. The Mayor may exclude 4 
incompetent, irrelevant, immaterial and unduly repetitious evidence.  5 
2. Documentary evidence may be received in the form of copies or excerpts, or by 6 
incorporation by reference. However, no documentary evidence may be received unless it 7 
is presented to the City Clerk to be identified and marked as an exhibit in the proceedings. 8 
Where possible, a copy of each item of documentary evidence shall be provided for public 9 
inspection no later than the time of its introduction before the City Council.  10 
3. A count of those in attendance who support or oppose an application shall not be 11 
taken. A written listing or petition of those persons who state general support or opposition 12 
to a pending application is not admissible.  13 
4. With regard to an application for approval of a special exception, the City Council 14 
shall provide a period of not more than seven days following the public hearing during 15 
which any person may submit comments regarding the application. The comments shall be 16 
in typewritten form and shall be filed with the City Clerk together with ten copies. The 17 
person submitting the comments shall forward a copy to the applicant and shall certify the 18 
date and manner of delivery. Following the comment period, the applicant shall have a like 19 
amount of time to submit rebuttal comments. These comments shall also be in typewritten 20 
form and filed with the City Clerk together with ten copies.  21 
 22 

E. Decision. Action by the City Council with regard to any matter upon which a public hearing 23 
has been conducted in the exercise of the City Council's authority to zone or rezone property, to 24 
consider applications relating to the use of land, or to consider matters related to alcoholic 25 
beverage licenses, shall not be taken sooner than at a special meeting called for that purpose or 26 
at the next regular meeting of the City Council. Prior to acting upon an application for approval 27 
of a special exception, and unless a majority objects, the City Council shall resolve itself into a 28 
committee of the whole to consider the findings, conditions and other matters related to the 29 
application.  30 
 31 
F. As used in this section, the term "applicant" includes a "petitioner," "appellant," or a 32 
"licensee" as the case may be, and the other provisions of this section shall be interpreted 33 
accordingly in consideration of the type of matter being heard.  34 
  35 
 36 
 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 37 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage. 38 
 39 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 40 
 41 
 42 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 43 
 44 

EXPLANATION 45 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 46 

Page 100



O-25-12 
Page 7 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 1 
Underlining indicates amendments. 2 

Page 101



Policy Report 
 

Ordinance O-25-12 
 

The Time for Beginning Regular Meetings of the City Council 

 

The proposed ordinance would change the beginning time for regular meetings of the 
City Council from 7:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. for consistency with Special Meetings of the 
City Council since they generally begin at 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst, Office of Law; 
JCCowles@annapolis.gov and 410-263-1184. 

 

Page 102



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE   
 

Legislation No: O-25-12   First Reader Date: 6-18-12 
Note Date:    6-20-12 

 
Legislation Title:  The Time for Beginning Regular Meetings of the City Council 

 
 

Description:  For the purpose of changing the beginning time for regular meetings of the 
City Council from 7:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact:   
 
This legislation produces no significant fiscal impact. 

Page 103



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Ordinance No. O-51-11 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen Alderwoman Finlayson,  6 
Alderwoman Hoyle and Alderman Kirby 7 

 8 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 180 Day Rule 

11/14/11   5/12/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 11/14/11   

Planning Commission 11/14/11   
 9 
A ORDINANCE concerning 10 

Use and Redevelopment of Property in C2 Zoning Districts 11 
 12 
FOR the purpose of adding certain provisions governing use and redevelopment of property 13 

located in a C2 Zoning District. 14 

BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the Code of the 15 
City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition 16 

 Section 21.42.080 17 
 18 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 19 
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 20 

Chapter 21.42 – COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS 21 

21.42.080 - C2 Conservation Business district.  22 

A. Purpose. The C2 Conservation Business district is designed to encourage the preservation 23 
of the old City by allowing a compatible mixture of business and home crafts and shops, unique 24 
to the early development of the City.  25 

B. Uses. Uses that may be permitted in the C2 district are set forth in the table of uses for 26 
commercial and industrial districts in Chapter 21.48  27 

C. Development Standards. Chapter 21.50 contains the bulk regulations table for the C2 28 
district.  29 

D. Additional Standards. 30 

1. All business, servicing or processing in the C2 district, except for off-street parking or 31 
loading, shall be conducted within completely enclosed buildings.  32 

2. Food service establishment restrictions apply in the C2 district, see Section 21.64.300  33 

Page 104



O-51-11 
Page 2 

3. Off-street loading spaces are not required in the C2 district. 1 

4. Waterfront properties designated as part of the C2 Conservation Business District shall 2 
provide a public pedestrian access across the waterway frontage of the property. 3 

5.  Upon redevelopment of a site in the C2 Zoning District, those scenic views recognized 4 
in the Annapolis Comprehensive Plan or other plans adopted as amendments thereto by 5 
the Annapolis City Council must be restored or preserved.  For purposes of this section, 6 
redevelopment shall mean new construction, alterations or renovations to the exterior of 7 
the structure(s) on the site, not including decks, windows, doors and façade treatments or 8 
other improvements within the existing footprint and building envelope, in excess of fifty 9 
percent (50%) of the value of the improvements on the site as of the date of permit 10 
requests. 11 

 12 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 13 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage. 14 
 15 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 16 
 17 
 18 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 19 
 20 

EXPLANATION: 21 
Highlighting indicates matter added to existing law. 22 
Strikeout indicates matter deleted from existing law. 23 

Underlining indicates amendments. 24 
 25 

Page 105



Page 1 

Proposed Amendments to O-51-11 
Use and Redevelopment of Property in C2 Zoning Districts 

 
Page 1, Line 13: After word “adding” insert “AN ADDITIONAL PERMITTED USE AND 
ADDING” 
 
Page 1, Line 18: Insert “SECTION 21.48.020” 
 
Page 2, Line 12: Add: SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND 
ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the Code of Annapolis shall be amended 
to read as follows: 

Amend the Use Table found at Section 21.48.020: 

 
21.48 – USE TABLES 
 
21.48.020 – Table of Uses – Commercial and Industrial Zoning Districts 
 
P = Permitted Use; S = Special Exception Use; -Std = Use Subject to Standards (Chapter 21.64); A = 
Accessory Use; Blank = Not Permitted  

A use, including a special exception use, that is not normally permissible as a permitted use or use subject 
to standards in a zoning district may be permitted in that district as a planned development use pursuant to 
Section 21.24.020.  

Important. The notes at the end of the table are as much a part of the law as the table itself.  
 

USES 
District 

B1 
District 

B2 
District 

B3 
District 
B3-CD 

District 
BCE 

District
BR 

District 
C2 

District 
C2A 

District 
PM2 

District 
I1 

           
Boat 
Showrooms 

  P P P      

           
BOAT SHOWS 
AND 
RELATED 
ACTIVITIES 
INCLUDING 
VENDOR 
BOOTHS AND 
DISPLAY 
AREAS 

      P5    

           
DOCKS, SLIPS, 
PIERS AND 
OTHER 
FACILITIES 
FOR  
IN-WATER 
STORAGE OF 
BOATS AND 
WATERCRAFT 

      P    

           

Page 106



Page 2 

Notes: 

A. Uses in the PM2 district are subject to the following provisions as indicated in the table: 

1. This use is permitted as a principal use only in districts that do not adjoin (along non-street frontage) 
property zoned R1, R1A, R1B or R2.  

2. This use is permitted as an incidental use in a structure that contains business, professional or 
governmental offices provided that gross floor area of all incidental uses does not exceed the amount of 
space devoted to the first floor of a multistory structure; except, that in no case shall it exceed 33 percent 
of the total gross floor area. This use is considered a neighborhood convenience use and is subject to 
standards given in 21.64.420  

3. If the principal use with which the drive-thru facility is associated is a special exception use, then the 
drive-thru facility requires special exception approval  

4. ATMs are permitted as walkups subject to all other applicable regulations. In the C2 and C2A districts, 
drive-through facilities are not permitted.  
 
B. USES IN THE C2 DISTRICT ARE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS 

AS INDICATED IN THE TABLE: 
 
5.  THIS USE IS PERMITTED ONLY ON LOTS WITH WATERFRONT FRONTAGE. 
 
 
Page 2, Line 13: Strike “SECTION II” and insert “SECTION III” 

Page 107



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE 
 

Legislation No: O-51-11                           First Reader Date: 11-14-11 
Note Date:   11-27-11 

 
Legislation Title:  Use and Redevelopment of Property in C2 Zoning Districts 

 
 

Description: 
 
For the purpose of adding certain provisions governing use and redevelopment of property 
located in a C2 Zoning District. 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact:   
 
This legislation will provide for a waterfront pedestrian access across the waterway 
frontage of property in the C2 Zoning District as well as restore and preserve scenic views. 
While the legislation produces no significant direct fiscal impact, it could lead to an 
increase in the tax base, thereby increasing tax revenues. 

Page 108



Policy Report 
 

Ordinance O-51-11 
 

Use and Redevelopment of Property in C2 Zoning Districts 
 
The proposed ordinance would add two provisions governing the use and 
redevelopment of property located in the C2 Zoning District.  The first provision of 
O-51-11 would require public pedestrian access across the waterway frontage of 
property in the C2 Conservation Business District.   
 
The second provision of the proposed ordinance would require restoration or 
preservation of scenic views recognized in the Comprehensive Plan (or 
amendments to it) upon the redevelopment of a site in the C2 Zoning District.  
The proposed ordinance defines redevelopment to mean new construction, 
alterations or renovations to the exterior of the structure(s) on the site in excess 
of 50% of the value of the improvements on the site as of the date of permit 
requests, excluding decks, windows, doors and façade treatments, or other 
improvements within the existing footprint and building envelope. 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of 
Annapolis Office of Law at 410.263.1184 or JCCowles@annapolis.gov.  

Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



O-52-11 
Page 1 

 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Ordinance No. O-52-11 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Alderwoman Finlayson, Alderwoman Hoyle and Alderman Kirby 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 180 Day Rule 

11/14/11   5/12/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 11/14/11   

Planning Commission 11/14/11   

 8 
A ORDINANCE concerning 9 

Rezoning Parcels 1244 and 1255, Grid 20, Tax Map 52A 10 
 11 
FOR the purpose of rezoning parcels 1244 and 1255, Grid 20, Tax Map 52A to C2, 12 

“Conservation Business” Zoning District. 13 

BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the Zoning District Map contained in 14 
Section 21.06.020 of the Code of the City of Annapolis 2011 Edition, to reflect the 15 
rezoning of parcels 1244 and 1255, Grid 20, Tax Map 52A to C2 “Conservation 16 
Business” Zoning District. 17 

 18 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 19 
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 20 

Chapter 21.06 – ZONING DISTRICTS AND MAPPING 21 

21.06.020 - Zoning District Map.  22 

The location and boundaries of the zoning districts of this Zoning Code are established as 23 
shown on the zoning map entitled "City of Annapolis Zoning District Map," which is incorporated 24 
in this section and made a part of this Zoning Code. The map, together with everything shown 25 
on the map and all amendments to the map, is as much a part of this Zoning Code as though 26 
fully set forth and described in this Zoning Code. (Amended during 2007 edition: Ord. O-30-05 27 
Revised Attach., 2006: Ord. O-11-05 Revised Amended § 1 (part), 2005: Ord. O-1-04 Revised 28 
(part), 2005).  The zoning reflected on the Zoning District Map is amended to reflect the zoning 29 
of parcels 1244 and 1255, Grid 20, Tax Map 52A as C2 “Conservation Business” Zoning District 30 
located at 110 Compromise Street in Annapolis as contained in Exhibit A attached to this 31 
ordinance. 32 
 33 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 34 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that having considered the application, testimony and evidence 35 
presented, and the report and recommendations of the Planning Commission, and having 36 

Page 124



O-52-11 
Page 2 

weighed the evidence and judged the credibility of witnesses appearing before it, the City 1 
Council in accordance with Section 4.05, Article 66B of the Annotated Code of Maryland, and 2 
Section 21.34.040 of the City Code of Annapolis, makes the following findings of fact concerning 3 
the rezoning of the parcels located at 110 Compromise Street. 4 
 5 

FINDINGS 6 
 7 
Article 66B is the State enabling legislation that grants local governments to power to regulate 8 
the use of land through zoning. Article 66B, Section 4.05 establishes the 'change or mistake' 9 
rule wherein a zoning map amendment can only be granted based on a finding that there was a 10 
substantial change in the character of the neighborhood where the property is located, or that 11 
there was a mistake in the original zoning. Chapter 21.34 of the Annapolis City code sets forth 12 
the six criteria and findings that must be made in order to make the finding for change or 13 
mistake in considering a rezoning. They are as follows: 14 
 15 
A. Existing uses and zoning classification of properties within the general area of the 16 
property that is the subject of the application. 17 
In the vicinity of the property there are three zoning classifications. Subject property abuts land 18 
zoned C2 and WMC. In the area, but not abutting subject property there is land zoned C1, 19 
Conservation Residence District. The WMC zone on the other side of the water consists of the 20 
Natural Resources Police building, the Annapolis Harbormaster building, and a large car parking 21 
lot. The WMC zone on the side of the subject property consists of the Fleet Reserve building - 22 
which is essentially a social and dining club, the Marriott Hotel building - which has no maritime 23 
uses and includes a popular waterfront restaurant, the Annapolis Yacht marina, and the 24 
Annapolis Yacht Club - both of which are maritime. The Fleet Reserve and the Marriott Hotel 25 
are both nonconforming uses though both are in the WMC. The City of Annapolis also owns two 26 
small car parking lots in this portion of the WMC zone. 27 
 28 
The C-1 zone contains the Annapolis Elementary School, an Anne Arundel Board of Education 29 
administration building, a car parking lot, and a playground. The school has coexisted for 30 
decades with the surrounding commercial activity. The entire area, known generally as the City 31 
Dock area, is intensively commercial. 32 
 33 
The Commission finds that a general commercial zone for this will not be discordant with the 34 
general commercial tenor of the general area. 35 
 36 
B. The suitability of the property in question to the uses permitted under the existing 37 
zoning classification compared to the uses permitted under the proposed zoning 38 
classification. 39 
As mentioned earlier, the property was zoned from C2, Conservation Business to WMC, 40 
Waterfront Maritime Conservation in 1987, no doubt due, at least in part, to the presence of 41 
Fawcett's as a tenant. At the time of the WMC zoning, all of the properties abutting City Dock 42 
were zoned WMC irrespective of the extant use or whether the properties were or would be 43 
rendered nonconforming by the change. 44 
 45 
For the non-maritime uses listed there are additional standards that must be met and size 46 
limitations for the use to be allowed in the WMC District. 47 
 48 
The Planning & Zoning Commission heard testimony and had the benefit of staff expertise. The 49 
Commission finds that the nature of City Dock has changed dramatically from supporting the 50 
Chesapeake Bay seafood industry to becoming a destination for recreational boaters, land-51 

Page 125



O-52-11 
Page 3 

based day trippers, and local and regional customers of the restaurant and retail 1 
establishments. These users of City Dock are not arriving downtown with the specific intent to 2 
purchase maritime-related goods. The Maritime Zones were created to concentrate maritime 3 
uses so each could take advantage of proximity to another. Current downtown maritime use 4 
consists of a marina and a yacht club, which do not create the synergies contemplated. A 5 
survey by BBP, LLC found that respondents felt there was a need for specialty food, sporting 6 
goods/hobby, clothing and limited service restaurants but not for maritime services and goods. 7 
 8 
C. The trend of development in the general area, including any changes in zoning 9 
classification of the subject property or other properties in the area and the compatibility 10 
with existing and proposed development for the area. 11 
As noted above area properties were rezoned in 1987 from C2 to WMC with the adoption of the 12 
maritime economic and land use strategy. As noted above the nature of City Dock has changed 13 
over time from watermen related uses to a visitor destination--both land based and water based. 14 
The mix of retail goods sold downtown has changed as well. The C2 zoning designation 15 
proposed for the property is consistent with zoning in the area since C2 is the predominant 16 
commercial zoning district downtown. City Dock is viewed as the focal point of Annapolis and 17 
trends in thinking envision the City Dock area as a gathering place for local residents, regional 18 
residents, state employees, county employees, City employees, and visitors who may or may 19 
not have business in the City. None of these populations support a maritime business. The mix 20 
of uses allowed in the C2 zoning can support visitor, resident and employment populations. 21 
 22 
The Commission finds that the trend in development, including the proposed zoning change, will 23 
be compatible with current and proposed development in the general area. 24 
 25 
D. Whether there has been a substantial change in the character of the neighborhood 26 
where the property is located or that there was a mistake in the existing zoning 27 
classification. 28 
The Commission finds that since the adoption of the WMC zoning twenty-four years ago, the 29 
business mix and functions in the downtown have undergone change. The so-called hard 30 
maritime uses have become concentrated on the Eastport side of Spa Creek and on both sides 31 
of Back Creek. Other than the AYC (and the proposed National Sailing Hall of Fame) there are 32 
no maritime uses in the WMC zone. As noted above, uses around City Dock are changing to 33 
reflect its emerging role as a visitor destination. The Commission finds there has been a 34 
substantial change in the character of the neighborhood where the property is located. 35 
 36 
E. The availability of public facilities, present and future transportation patterns. 37 
The Commission finds there are adequate public facilities in place to support the requested 38 
rezoning. The Commission further finds the requested rezoning will have no impact on present 39 
or future transportation patterns. 40 
 41 
F. The relationship of the proposed amendment to the City's Comprehensive Plan. 42 
The Annapolis Comprehensive Plan recommends mixed-use development for this site. The 43 
proposed C2 zoning classification is consistent with the comprehensive plan recommendation. 44 
The Commission finds that the proposed zoning amendment is compatible with the 45 
Comprehensive Plan. 46 
 47 
 48 

SECTION III:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 49 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 50 
 51 

Page 126



O-52-11 
Page 4 

 1 
ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 2 

 3 
 4 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 5 
 6 

EXPLANATION: 7 
Highlighting indicates matter added to existing law. 8 
Strikeout indicates matter deleted from existing law. 9 

Underlining indicates amendments.10 

Page 127



O-52-11 
Page 5 

 

 

Exhibit A 

Page 128



Page 1 

Proposed Amendments to O-52-11 

Rezoning Parcels 1244 and 1255, Grid 20, Tax Map 52A 

 

Page 1, Line 10: Strike “1244” and insert “1247” 

 

Page 1, Line 12: Strike “1244” and insert “1247” 

 

Page 1, Line 16: Strike “1244” and insert “1247” 

 

Page 1, Line 30: Strike “1244” and insert “1247” 

 

Page 5:   Strike existing “Exhibit A” and insert new “Exhibit A” on Page 5 

Page 129



Page 2 

 

Page 130



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE 
 

Legislation No: O-52-11                           First Reader Date: 11-14-11 
Note Date:   11-27-11 

 
Legislation Title:  Rezoning Parcels 1244 and 1255, Grid 20, Tax Map 52A 

 
 

Description: 
 
For the purpose of rezoning parcels 1244 and 1255, Grid 20, Tax Map 52A 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact:   
 
This legislation changes the zoning for this vacant commercial property, currently zoned 
Waterfront Maritime Conservation, to C2, ” Conservation Business” Zoning District.  The 
effect of the zoning change will allow non-maritime use of the property.  According to the 
report and recommendations of the Planning Commission, the zoning change is not 
discordant with the general commercial tenor of the area and most users of the area are 
not arriving there with the intention of purchasing maritime-related goods.  While the 
legislation produces no significant direct fiscal impact, by adding to potential uses, the 
City’s tax base could increase, thereby increasing tax revenues. 

Page 131



Policy Report 
 

Ordinance O-52-11 
 

Rezoning Parcels 1244 and 1255, Grid 20, Tax Map 52A 
 
The proposed ordinance would rezone parcels 1244 and 1255, Grid 20, Tax Map 
52A from WMC (Waterfront Maritime Conservation) to C2 (Conservation 
Business) Zoning District. 
 
Article 66B is the State enabling legislation that grants local governments the 
authority to regulate the use of land through zoning. Article 66B, Section 4.05 
establishes the 'change or mistake' rule wherein a zoning map amendment can 
only be granted based on a finding that there was a substantial change in the 
character of the neighborhood where the property is located, or that there was a 
mistake in the original zoning.  
 
Chapter 21.34 of the Annapolis City Code sets forth the six criteria and findings 
that must be made in order to make the finding for change or mistake in 
considering a rezoning. They are as follows: 
A. Existing uses and zoning classification of properties within the general area of 
the property that is the subject of the application. 
B. The suitability of the property in question to the uses permitted under the 
existing zoning classification compared to the uses permitted under the proposed 
zoning classification. 
C. The trend of development in the general area, including any changes in 
zoning classification of the subject property or other properties in the area and 
the compatibility with existing and proposed development for the area. 
D. Whether there has been a substantial change in the character of the 
neighborhood where the property is located or that there was a mistake in the 
existing zoning classification. 
E. The availability of public facilities, present and future transportation patterns. 
F. The relationship of the proposed amendment to the City's Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of 
Annapolis Office of Law at 410.263.1184 or JCCowles@annapolis.gov.  

Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Ordinance No. O-7-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Alderwoman Finlayson and Alderman Arnett 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 180 Day Rule 

2/27/12   8/24/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 2/27/12   

Planning Commission 2/27/12   

 8 
A ORDINANCE concerning 9 

Variances for Subdivisions 10 

FOR the purpose of moving the authority for granting subdivision variances from the Planning 11 
Commission to the Board of Appeals to comply with the Annotated Code of Maryland 12 
and a recent court decision; and all matters relating to variances for subdivisions. 13 

 14 
BY repealing the following portions of the Code of the City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition: 15 

Section 20.32.010 16 
Section 20.32.020 17 
Section 20.32.040 18 
Section 20.32.050 19 

 20 
BY repealing, renumbering, and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the 21 

Code of the City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition: 22 
Section 20.32.030 to Section 20.32.010 23 
Section 20.32.060 to Section 20.32.020 24 
Section 20.32.080 to Section 20.32.030 25 
Section 20.32.090 to Section 20.32.040 26 
Section 20.32.100 to Section 20.32.050 27 

 28 
BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the Code of the 29 

City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition: 30 
Section 21.08.040 31 
Section 21.54.180 32 

 33 
 34 

SECTION I: BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 35 
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall read as follows: 36 
 37 

Page 141



O-7-12 
Page 2 

CHAPTER 20.32 – VARIANCES 1 
 2 
[20.32.010 Planning Commission authority--Generally. 3 
The Planning Commission after a public hearing, may determine and vary the regulations of this 4 
title where the commission makes findings of fact in accordance with the standards prescribed 5 
in this chapter and further finds that, while extraordinary hardship may result from strict 6 
compliance with this title, the variance authorized will not have the effect of nullifying the intent 7 
and purpose of the comprehensive master plan, adopted land use plans for the area, or this 8 
title.]  9 
 10 
 11 
[20.32.020 Planning Commission--Planned communities. 12 
The standards and requirements of this title may be modified as approved by the Planning 13 
Commission in conjunction with the review of either the preliminary or final plats in the case of a 14 
plan and program for a complete community or a neighborhood unit which, in the judgment of 15 
the commission, provide adequate public spaces and improvements for the circulation, 16 
recreation, light, air and service needs of the tract when fully developed and populated, and 17 
which also provide covenants or other legal provisions as will assure conformity to and 18 
achievement of the plan.]  19 
 20 
 21 
[20.32.030]  20.32.010 Application. 22 
An application for a variance shall be filed with the Planning and Zoning Director in the form and 23 
accompanied by the information required by the director [who shall submit a written report and 24 
recommendation to the Planning Commission.] FOLLOWING THE PROCESS IDENTIFIED IN 25 
SECTIONS 21.28.020B AND 21.28.030 AND SHALL PROVIDE ADEQUATE EVIDENCE THAT 26 
THE PROPOSED VARIANCE WILL CONFORM TO THE STANDARDS SET FORTH IN 27 
TITLE 20. 28 
 29 
 30 
[20.32.040 Review by commission. 31 
A. A variance application, when complete, shall be placed upon the agenda of the Planning 32 
Commission for consideration at its regular monthly meeting. The agenda shall be published in 33 
a newspaper of general circulation in the City at least seven days prior to the meeting. The 34 
applicant shall post a sign on the property for which the variance is being sought at least fifteen 35 
days prior to the meeting. At this meeting the commission may accept whatever evidence and 36 
testimony it judges to be relevant to the proper consideration of the case. The applicant shall be 37 
responsible for the removal of the sign within seven days following the meeting. 38 
B. At the meeting a report and recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Director shall be 39 
received and the director shall be available to respond to inquiries from the members of the 40 
Planning Commission.]  41 
 42 
 43 
[20.32.050 Commission findings and action. 44 
Within thirty days after the commission has completed its review of the application, but in no 45 
case longer than ninety days after placing the application on the agenda of the commission, the 46 
commission shall make written findings of fact.]  47 
 48 
 49 
[20.32.060] 20.32.020 Required findings. 50 

Page 142



O-7-12 
Page 3 

The [Planning Commission] BOARD OF APPEALS shall not vary the regulations of this title 1 
unless findings are made based upon the evidence presented in each specific case that: 2 
A. Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the 3 
specific project involved, a particular hardship to the owner would result as distinguished from a 4 
mere inconvenience if the strict letter of the regulations were to be carried out; 5 
B. The conditions upon which the petition for a variance is based are unique to the property for 6 
which the variance is sought; 7 
C. The purpose of the variance is not based exclusively upon a desire to increase financial gain; 8 
D. The alleged difficulty or hardship is caused by this title and has not been created by any 9 
persons presently having an interest in the property; 10 
E. The granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other 11 
property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located; 12 
F. The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 13 
property, or substantially increase the congestion of the public streets, or increase the danger of 14 
fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within the 15 
neighborhood; 16 
G. With respect to proposed lots comprised of land which, as of January 1, 1981, was 17 
unimproved by buildings or structures, the proposed variance will not authorize lot areas or lot 18 
widths which are less then eighty percent of those required by the applicable zoning regulations 19 
of the City. With respect to other proposed lots, the proposed variance may authorize any lot 20 
areas or lot widths complying with subsections A through F of this section. 21 
 22 
 23 
[20.32.080] 20.32.030 Commission action. 24 
Prior to the granting of any variance, the [Planning Commission] BOARD OF APPEALS shall 25 
stipulate conditions and restrictions as in their judgment will secure substantially the objectives 26 
of the standards or requirements so varied or modified. In all cases in which variances are 27 
granted, the [commission] BOARD shall require evidence and guarantees as it may deem 28 
necessary as proof that the conditions stipulated in connection with the variance are being and 29 
will be satisfied. No variance shall be granted under this chapter except by the affirmative vote 30 
of a majority of all members of the [commission] BOARD.  31 
 32 
 33 
[20.32.090] 20.32.040 Resubmittal after denial. 34 
No application for a variance which has been denied by the [Planning Commission] BOARD OF 35 
APPEALS shall be resubmitted for a period of one year from the date of the order of denial, 36 
except on the grounds of new evidence or proof of change of conditions found to be valid by the 37 
[Planning Commission] BOARD OF APPEALS.  38 
 39 
 40 
[20.32.100] 20.32.050  Appeals. 41 
Appeals from decisions of the [Planning Commission] BOARD OF APPEALS under this chapter 42 
shall be made to the Circuit Court of Maryland for Anne Arundel County pursuant to Maryland 43 
Rules, Title 7, Chapter 200, or its successors.  44 
 45 

Chapter 21.08 – DECISION MAKING BODIES AND OFFICIALS 46 
 47 
21.08.040 - Board of Appeals. 48 

Page 143



O-7-12 
Page 4 

A.  Establishment. The Board of Appeals is established pursuant to and has the authority to 1 
execute all of the powers granted to Boards of Appeals by Article 66B of the Annotated Code of 2 
Maryland.  3 
B.  Membership. The Board of Appeals shall consist of five members who shall be residents and 4 
registered voters of the City of Annapolis and who shall serve without compensation. The 5 
regular members and one alternate member shall be appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by 6 
the City Council and be removable for cause, upon written charges, and after public hearing. 7 
When an alternate member is absent, the Mayor with the confirmation of the City Council may 8 
designate a temporary alternate.  9 
C.  Term. The term of office of each member of the Board of Appeals shall be for three years, as 10 
provided in Article 66B of the Annotated Code of Maryland. Vacancies shall be filled for the 11 
unexpired term of any member whose term becomes vacant.  12 
D.  Rules. The Board of Appeals shall adopt rules in accordance with the provisions of this 13 
section and in accordance with the provisions of Article 66B of the Annotated Code of Maryland. 14 
The Board shall adopt and amend rules as follows:  15 

1.  After a public session to consider the proposed rules or amendments, the Board shall 16 
adopt and periodically amend rules of practice and procedure.  17 
2.  The Board shall give reasonable notice of the date, time, and place of the public 18 
session and the category of rule or amendment to be considered at the session.  19 
3.  After approval by the Board, the rules of the Board of Appeals shall be published and 20 
shall be available to the public through the Department of Planning and Zoning.  21 

E.  Duties. The Board of Appeals shall have the following powers and duties: 22 
1.  To hear and decide appeals, pursuant to the provisions of Zoning Code Chapter 23 
21.30 where it is alleged there is error in any order, requirement, decision or 24 
determination made by an administrative official or body in the enforcement of: (a) this 25 
Zoning Code; or (b) any ordinance adopted pursuant to this Zoning Code.  26 
2.  To hear and decide applications for special exceptions pursuant to Chapter 21.26 of 27 
this Zoning Code.  28 
3.  To hear and decide applications for variances from the terms of this Zoning Code, 29 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 21.28 AND FROM THE TERMS OF TITLE 20 - 30 
SUBDIVISIONS, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 20.32. 31 
4.  To hear and decide applications for zoning district boundary adjustments pursuant to 32 
the provisions of Zoning Code Chapter 21.20  33 
5.  To hear and decide applications for physical alteration of a nonconforming use 34 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 21.68  35 
6.  To hear and decide all matters referred to it or upon which it is required to decide by 36 
this Zoning Code, and as prescribed by Article 66B of the Annotated Code of Maryland.  37 

F.  Tolling of Approvals. Approvals granted by the Board of Appeals pursuant to Section 38 
21.08.040E of this Code and extensions thereof which are active and valid as of December 31, 39 
2010, shall be tolled until June 30, 2012, so that all such approvals and extensions shall expire 40 
on, or any applicable extension request shall have been requested by, June 30, 2012.  41 
G.  Meetings. The meetings of the Board of Appeals shall be held at the call of the chair and at 42 
other time determined by the Board. The Board shall provide public notice of any meeting by 43 
publication in at least one newspaper of general circulation in the City not less than seven days 44 
prior to the meeting. The chair or the acting chair may administer oaths and compel the 45 
attendance of witnesses. All meetings shall be open to the public. The Board shall make a 46 
transcript of all proceedings, showing the vote of each member on each question, or the 47 
member's absence or failure to vote. The board shall immediately file the transcript of its 48 
proceedings in the Office of Planning and Zoning. Each transcript shall be a public record. If a 49 
recording or a transcript of a recording is not prepared in the normal course of the Board's 50 

Page 144



O-7-12 
Page 5 

proceedings, the party who requests a copy of the recording or its transcript shall pay the cost of 1 
preparing the recording or transcript.  2 
 3 

 4 

CHAPTER 21.54 – CRITICAL AREA OVERLAY 5 

21.54.180 Variances in conjunction with subdivisions. 6 
A. In accordance with the regulations of Chapter 20, Subdivisions, if a subdivision requires 7 
approval by the Planning Commission, the authority to approve a variance to the critical area 8 
requirements shall be that of the [Planning Commission] BOARD OF APPEALS. The [Planning 9 
Commission] BOARD OF APPEALS in considering the variance shall apply the standards or 10 
conditions of review specified under Section 21.54.160. 11 
B. Appeals from decisions of the [Planning Commission] BOARD OF APPEALS under Section 12 
21.54.180 shall be made to the Circuit Court for Anne Arundel County. 13 
 14 
 15 
 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 16 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage. 17 
 18 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 19 
 20 
 21 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 22 
 23 

EXPLANATION 24 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 25 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 26 
Underlining indicates amendments.  27 

 28 
 29 

Page 145



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE   
 

Legislation No: O-7-12   First Reader Date: 2-27-12 
Note Date:    5-4-12 

 
Legislation Title:  Variances for Subdivisions 

 
 

Description:  For the purpose of moving the authority for granting subdivision variances 
from the Planning Commission to the Board of Appeals to comply with the Annotated Code 
of Maryland and a recent court decision; and all matters relating to variances for 
subdivisions. 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact:   
 
This legislation produces no significant fiscal impact. 
 
 
 

Page 146



O-7-12 
Variances for Subdivisions 

Staff Paper 
 
In a March 2, 2007 decision, the Circuit Court for Anne Arundel County held in 
Annapolis Roads Property Owners Assoc., Case No.: C-2006-114 597, that the 
Annapolis Planning Commission lacked the legal authority to grant a variance to 
minimum setback requirements in Title 21, Zoning Code of the Annapolis City Code.  
The Circuit Court further held that only the Board of Appeals possessed that power.  
 
The Circuit Court advised that the Planning Commission could grant only variances 
under Title 20, Subdivisions, of the Annapolis City Code, to authorize deviations from a 
master subdivision and/or plat.  The proposed ordinance, therefore, proposes a series 
of changes to the City Code to comply with the Circuit Court’s decision and State law.  
In general, these changes are as follows: 
 

Court Memorandum 
Opinion 

 
Comments 

Proposed Ordinance  
O-7-12 

“Commissioners (Planning 
Commission) lacked the 
statutory authority to grant 
variances to zoning 
regulations.” 
 
“The Commission’s 
authority to grant variance 
under…20.32.010 refers to 
its ability to deviate from the 
master subdivision plan 
and/or plat.” 

Maryland Code 66B, §4.07 
states that the Board of 
Appeals may “authorize on 
appeal in specific cases a 
variance from the terms of 
an ordinance.”  §5.04 states 
that the Planning 
Commission may specify 
subdivision requirements or 
restrictions that “…have the 
same force of law…”   

Planning Commission will 
continue to review and 
approve subdivision plats 
that are consistent with Title 
20, Subdivisions. 

To hold otherwise would 
create “…dual regulation of 
zoning regulations.  
…single/small lot owners 
could only apply to the 
Board of Appeals for an 
area variance…while large 
property owners could 
choose to either go before 
the Board of Appeals or the 
Planning Commission…” 

Process should be the 
same for everyone. 

All zoning variances are 
decided by the Board of 
Appeals. 

 
Prepared by: Jessica Cowles, Law Office, JCCowles@annapolis.gov and 410-263-1184 

Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Ordinance No. O-16-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

4/23/12   7/27/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Public Safety 4/23/12   

 8 
AN ORDINANCE concerning 9 

Distribution of Unsolicited Materials 10 

FOR the purpose of establishing Section 11.36.025 of the Code of the City of Annapolis 11 
regarding the distribution of unsolicited materials. 12 

BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the Code of the 13 
City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition 14 

 Section 11.36.010 15 
  16 
BY adding to the following portions of the Code of the City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition 17 
 Section 11.36.025 18 
 19 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 20 
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 21 

CHAPTER 11.36 – OFFENSES AGAINST PROPERTY. 22 

11.36.010 - Advertising—Distribution in streets.  23 
No person shall distribute, or cause to be distributed, any pamphlets, dodgers, papers or other 24 
advertising matter upon or about the streets or alleys, or fasten, or cause to be fastened, the 25 
advertising matter to poles, or place, or cause them to be placed in or on automobiles. [This 26 
section does not restrict the distribution of advertising matter from house to house; provided, 27 
that it is so distributed that it will not be blown or cast into the street.]  28 
 29 

11.36.025 – LITTERING – UNSOLICITED MATERIALS. 30 
NO PERSON SHALL DISTRIBUTE, OR CAUSE TO BE DISTRIBUTED, ANY UNSOLICITED 31 
MATERIALS UPON OR ABOUT THE STREETS, ALLEYS, RESIDENTIAL OR COMMERCIAL 32 
PROPERTY, OR PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY.  THIS SECTION DOES NOT RESTRICT THE 33 
DISTRIBUTION OF UNSOLICITED MATERIALS (A) DELIVERED THROUGH THE U.S. 34 
POSTAL SERVICE, (B) DEPOSITED ON RESIDENTIAL OR COMMERCIAL DOOR STEPS, 35 
PORCHES, STOOPS OR (C) SECURED OR FASTENED THROUGH THE USE OF A DOOR 36 

Page 155



O-16-12 
Page 2 

HANGER SO THAT THE MATERIALS WILL NOT BE BLOWN OR CAST INTO THE STREETS, 1 
ALLEYS, RESIDENTIAL OR COMMERCIAL PROPERTY, OR PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY. 2 
 3 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 4 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage. 5 
 6 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 7 
 8 
 9 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 10 
 11 

EXPLANATION 12 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 13 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 14 
Underlining indicates amendments.  15 

 16 

Page 156



Policy Report 
 

O-16-12 
 

Distribution of Unsolicited Materials 

 
The proposed ordinance would prohibit the distribution of unsolicited materials upon or 
about the streets, alleys, residential or commercial property, or public rights of way.  The 
proposed ordinance would not restrict the distribution of unsolicited materials (a) 
delivered through the U.S. Postal Service, (b) deposited on residential or commercial 
door steps, porches, stoops or (c) secured or fastened through the use of a door hanger 
so that the materials will not be blown or cast into the streets, alleys, residential or 
commercial property, or public rights of way. 
 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  

 

Page 157



Amendment to O-16-12 
Distribution of Unsolicited Materials 

 
 
Amendment #1 – in the nature of a substitution: 
Strike from Page 1, Line 31 through Page 2, Line 2: 
[NO PERSON SHALL DISTRIBUTE, OR CAUSE TO BE DISTRIBUTED, ANY 
UNSOLICITED MATERIALS UPON OR ABOUT THE STREETS, ALLEYS, 
RESIDENTIAL OR COMMERCIAL PROPERTY, OR PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY.  
THIS SECTION DOES NOT RESTRICT THE DISTRIBUTION OF 
UNSOLICITED MATERIALS (A) DELIVERED THROUGH THE U.S. POSTAL 
SERVICE, (B) DEPOSITED ON RESIDENTIAL OR COMMERCIAL DOOR 
STEPS, PORCHES, STOOPS OR (C) SECURED OR FASTENED THROUGH 
THE USE OF A DOOR HANGER SO THAT THE MATERIALS WILL NOT BE 
BLOWN OR CAST INTO THE STREETS, ALLEYS, RESIDENTIAL OR 
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY, OR PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY.] 
 
Insert on Page 1, Line 31: 
UNSOLICITED MATERIALS MAY BE DISTRIBUTED TO RESIDENTIAL OR 
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY ONLY IF SUCH UNSOLICITED MATERIALS ARE: 
(A) DELIVERED THROUGH THE U.S. POSTAL SERVICE, (B) DEPOSITED ON 
DOOR STEPS, PORCHES, OR STOOPS PROVIDED THAT THE MATERIALS 
WILL NOT BE BLOWN OR CAST INTO STREETS, ALLEYS, RESIDENTIAL OR 
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY, OR PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY OR (C) SECURED 
OR FASTENED TO A DOOR, HANDLE, OR ENTRANCE GATE. 
 
 
Amendment #2 
Page 2, Line 3: insert “A PERSON WHO VIOLATES THIS SECTION IS GUILTY 
OF A MUNICIPAL INFRACTION AND IS SUBJECT TO A FINE AS 
ESTABLISHED BY RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL.” 
 

Page 158



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE   
 

Legislation No: O-16-12   First Reader Date: 4-23-12 
Note Date:    5-4-12 

 
Legislation Title:  Distribution of Unsolicited Materials 

 
 

Description:  For the purpose of establishing Section 11.36.025 of the Code of the City of 
Annapolis regarding the distribution of unsolicited materials. 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact:   
 
This legislation produces no significant fiscal impact. 

Page 159



Page 160



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-19-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

5/14/12   8/10/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 5/14/12   

Rules and City Gov’t 5/14/12   

 8 
 9 
A RESOLUTION concerning 10 

Restoration of the Maynard-Burgess House 11 

FOR the purpose of designating the signatory for any State of Maryland grants or easements 12 
for the restoration of the Maynard-Burgess House; and all matters relating to said 13 
restoration of the Maynard-Burgess House. 14 

 15 
WHEREAS,  the members of the City Council of the City of Annapolis have deemed it to be in 16 

the best interest of the City of Annapolis to apply for and to accept funds through a 17 
grant/loan/Maryland State bond bill or grants/loans/bond bills (respectively, the 18 
"Grant(s)", "Loan(s)" or “Bond Bill(s)”) to finance, in part, the costs of a specific 19 
project or projects at the Maynard-Burgess House (the "Project(s)") from the 20 
Maryland Department of Planning ("MDP") and or the Maryland Historical Trust 21 
(the "Trust") of the Maryland Department of Planning, a principal department of the 22 
State of Maryland; and 23 

 24 
WHEREAS,  the Grant/Loan/Bond Bill financing requires the City of Annapolis to convey an 25 

easement to the Maryland Historical Trust (the Grant/Loan/Bond Bill Easement”) 26 
on the property which will benefit from the Project; and 27 

 28 
WHEREAS,  the City of Annapolis signed a deed of easement with the Trust in 1999 to promote 29 

the preservation and maintenance of the Maynard-Burgess House and its historic, 30 
cultural, scenic and aesthetic character. 31 

 32 
 33 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the Project 34 
is hereby approved, and that the City of Annapolis is hereby authorized to apply for and, if 35 
approved, enter into the Grant/Loan/Bond Bill Easement in accordance with the terms and 36 
provisions of the documents evidencing the Grant/Loan/Bond Bill Easement including a 37 

Page 161



R-19-12 
Page 2 

grant/loan/preservation agreement (hereinafter referred to collectively as the "Grant Documents", 1 
"Loan Documents" or “Bond Bill Easement Documents”) which may be required by MDP or the 2 
Trust. 3 
 4 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the Mayor of the 5 
City of Annapolis is hereby separately authorized and directed to execute, attest to and deliver the 6 
Grant/Loan/ Bond Bill Easement Documents and other documents related thereto, substantially in 7 
the forms submitted to the City Council, which forms are hereby approved, in the name and on 8 
behalf of the City of Annapolis and under its corporate seal. 9 
 10 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the                        11 
Mayor of the City of Annapolis is separately authorized and directed to make or cause to be made 12 
and to execute and deliver on behalf of the City of Annapolis, such certificates and statements 13 
and any and all other papers, instruments, or documents which may be necessary, convenient, or 14 
desirable to complete the Grant/Loan/Bond Bill Easement transaction. 15 
 16 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the following 17 
person in the capacity indicated, or is otherwise authorized to execute and deliver documents 18 
on behalf of the City of Annapolis for purposes of binding the City of Annapolis; and the 19 
signature set forth below after his name and office is the true and genuine signature. 20 
 21 
Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor   _________________________________________ 22 
      Signature 23 
 24 
 25 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 26 
 27 
 28 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 29 
 30 

EXPLANATION 31 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 32 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 33 
Underlining indicates amendments.  34 

 35 

Page 162



Staff Report 
 

R-19-12 
 

Restoration of the Maynard-Burgess House 

 
The proposed resolution would designate the Mayor as the signatory for any State of 
Maryland grants or easements for the restoration of the Maynard-Burgess House.  The 
Maryland Historical Trust (MHT) requires that local governing bodies adopt a resolution 
designating the signatory for grants or easements before proceeding with the grant or 
easement.  The subject of the proposed R-19-12 is a MHT grant to assist with the 
restoration of the Maynard-Burgess House.  The grant funding was presented before 
the Annapolis City Council on May 14, 2012 as a budget transfer GT-50 from the 
Department of Planning and Zoning. 

 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the Office of Law at 
JCCowles@annapolis.gov  

 

Page 163



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE   
 

Legislation No: R-19-12   First Reader Date: 5-14-12 
Note Date:    6-20-12 

 
Legislation Title:   Restoration of the Maynard-Burgess House 

 
 

Description:  For the purpose designating the signatory for any State of Maryland grants 
or easements for the restoration of the Maynard-Burgess House; and all matters relating 
to said restoration of the Maynard-Burgess House. 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact:   
 
The fiscal impact of this legislation cannot be determined at this time because a loan or 
bond subject to repayment of interest may be necessary. 

Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-29-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

6/18/12   9/14/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 6/18/12   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

Reducing the Annual Fee For Trash Collection From Dwelling Units 10 

FOR the purpose of reducing the annual fee for trash collection from dwelling units. 11 

WHEREAS, the Annapolis City Council has decided to contract the dwelling unit trash 12 
collection service in order to achieve cost savings; and 13 

 14 
WHEREAS, the anticipated cost savings associated with the City of Annapolis’ contracting 15 

effort are expected to be substantial enough to allow the FY 2013 fee for 16 
dwelling unit trash collection to be reduced. 17 

 18 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the FY 19 
2013 fee schedule is amended as follows: 20 
 21 

Section Type of Fee Amount of 
Fee  

FY 2013 

10.16.160 Annual fee for trash collection from dwelling units within the city [$426.00] 
$380.00 

 22 
 23 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 24 
 25 
 26 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 27 

Page 167



R-29-12 
Page 2 

 1 
EXPLANATION 2 

CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 3 
[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 4 

Underlining indicates amendments. 5 

Page 168



Policy Report 
 

R-29-12 
 

Reducing the Annual Fee For Trash Collection From Dwelling Units 

 

The proposed resolution would reduce the annual fee for trash collection from dwelling 
units from $426.00 to $380.00 as a result of the cost savings the City of Annapolis 
anticipates as a result of the contracting of this function. 

 
 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  

 

Page 169



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE 
 
Legislation No: R-29-12   First Reader Date:  6-18-12 
       Note Date:    6-13-12 
 
Legislation Title:  Reducing the Annual Fee For Trash Collection From Dwelling 
Units 
 
Description: 
 
For the purpose of reducing the annual fee for trash collection from dwelling units. 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact: 
 
This legislation is expected to reduce City revenues by $420,432 in FY2013.   This 
reduction will be offset by a reduction in expenditures. 
 

Page 170



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-30-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Alderman Israel 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12   10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 7/9/12   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

Formation of a Task Force to Study the Police and Fire Pension Plan and Other Post 10 
Employment Benefits (OPEB) 11 

FOR the purpose of implementing the Finance Committee’s FY 2013 budget recommendation 12 
by forming a task force to study cost containment and recommend solutions to fund the 13 
Police and Fire Pension Plan and Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) for City of 14 
Annapolis employees. 15 

WHEREAS, the City of Annapolis must re-double its efforts to meet its obligation to the 16 
Police and Fire Pension Plan, currently under-funded by over $21 million; and 17 

 18 
WHEREAS, the City of Annapolis’ actuaries estimate a $46 million deficit in funding Other 19 

Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) for City of Annapolis employees; and 20 
 21 
WHEREAS, the City’s Financial Advisory Commission stated in a May 11, 2012 letter to the 22 

Mayor and City Council, “Short of converting to defined contribution plans, 23 
which would be optimal, the only changes that are likely to fix the structural 24 
problems with the existing pensions are to increase retirement ages and to 25 
push out eligibility for beginning payments to retirees. Adjusting funding levels 26 
for employees and the City within realistic ranges, changing assumptions on 27 
forward looking rates of return and making small changes in the plan structure 28 
will only slightly defer the problem; and 29 

 30 
WHEREAS, the City’s Financial Advisory Commission urged the formation of a task force 31 

with knowledgeable individuals to address these systemic and structural 32 
problems and the Finance Committee endorsed the recommendation in its FY 33 
2013 budget report. 34 

 35 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that a task force 36 
to study cost containment and recommend solutions to fund the Police and Fire Pension Plan 37 

Page 171



R-30-12 
Page 2 

and Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) for City of Annapolis employees is hereby 1 
established with the following membership: 2 
 3 
City Council: 4 
Alderman Matthew Silverman 5 
Alderman Ross Arnett 6 
  7 
Administration: 8 
Michael Mallinoff, City Manager 9 
Lee Finney, Financial Advisory Commission 10 
  11 
Public Safety Unions: 12 
Representative from IAFF Local 1926 13 
Representative from UFCW Local 400 14 
  15 
Chairperson: 16 
Paul Rensted, Human Resources Director 17 
 18 
 19 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the task force 20 
shall commence its work in July 2012 and submit its findings and recommendations on the 21 
Police and Fire Pension Plan to the City Council in October 2012, after which the task force 22 
shall then study Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) and prepare its findings and 23 
recommendations for submittal to the City Council. 24 
 25 
 26 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 32 
 33 

EXPLANATION 34 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 35 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 36 
Underlining indicates amendments.  37 

Page 172



R-30-12 
Page 3 

Policy Report 1 
 2 

R-30-12 3 
 4 

 5 
Formation of a Task Force to Study the Police and Fire Pension Plan and Other 6 

Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) 7 

 8 
The proposed resolution would implement the Finance Committee’s FY 2013 budget 9 
recommendation by forming a task force to study cost containment and recommend 10 
solutions to fund the Police and Fire Pension Plan and Other Post Employment Benefits 11 
(OPEB) for City of Annapolis employees.  The proposed resolution would provide for the 12 
task force to begin its work in July 2012 and submit its findings and recommendations 13 
on the Police and Fire Pension Plan to the City Council in October 2012, after which the 14 
task force would then study Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) and prepare its 15 
findings and recommendations for submittal to the City Council. 16 
 17 
 18 
 19 
 20 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 21 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  22 

 23 

Page 173



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-31-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Alderwoman Finlayson 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12   10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Housing and Human 
Welfare 

7/9/12   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

The Approval of a Community Legacy Application 10 

 11 
FOR the purpose of approving the application and receipt of financing for Community Legacy 12 

Projects(s) at the City of Annapolis’ Bates Heritage Youth Development Park to be 13 
financed either directly by the Department of Housing and Community Development (the 14 
Department) of the State of Maryland or through other departments or agencies of the 15 
State of Maryland. 16 

 17 
WHEREAS, the City of Annapolis recognizes that there is a significant need for 18 

reinvestment in and revitalization of communities in the City of Annapolis; and 19 
 20 
WHEREAS, the Department, either through the Community Legacy Program or through 21 

other Programs of the Department, or in cooperation with other state 22 
departments or agencies, may provide some or all of the financing 23 
redevelopment at the Bates Heritage Youth Development Park in order to 24 
assist in making it financially feasible; and 25 

 26 
WHEREAS,  the Bates Heritage Youth Development Park is located within a priority funding 27 

area under Section 5-7B-02 of the Smart Growth Act and the Project will 28 
conform to the local zoning code; and  29 

 30 
WHEREAS, the applicable law, regulations require approval of the Community Legacy 31 

Project for the Bates Heritage Youth Development Park and the Project 32 
financing by the City of Annapolis City Council. 33 

 34 
 35 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the City of 36 
Annapolis hereby endorses Bates Heritage Youth Development Park project and hereby 37 
approves the request in the form of a grant, up to the amount of $100,000. 38 
 39 

Page 174



R-31-12 
Page 2 

AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the City Clerk 1 
shall send copies of this Resolution to the Secretary of Housing and Community Development 2 
of the State of Maryland. 3 
 4 
 5 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 6 
 7 
 8 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 9 
 10 

EXPLANATION 11 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 12 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 13 
Underlining indicates amendments.  14 

 15 
 16 

Page 175



Staff Report 
 

R-31-12 
 

Approval of a Community Legacy Application 
 
 
The proposed resolution would approve the application and receipt of financing for 
Community Legacy Projects(s) at the City of Annapolis’ Bates Heritage Youth 
Development Park to be financed either directly by the Department of Housing and 
Community Development (the Department) of the State of Maryland or through other 
departments or agencies of the State of Maryland. 
 
Community Legacy, a program of the Department of Housing and Community 
Development (DHCD), is designed to assist urban neighborhoods, suburban 
communities, and small towns that are experiencing decline and disinvestment, but 
have the potential, with modest public and private investment, to be vibrant places to 
live and work.  All Community Legacy applications require a local government 
resolution.  The City has applied to Community Legacy for the Clay Street neighborhood 
since 2002 and has received $1,500,000 since then to revitalize that neighborhood. 
 
Besides the Clay Street neighborhood, the city also designated the Bates neighborhood 
as a Community Legacy Area.  The “Bates Neighborhood Community Legacy Plan” was 
adopted by the City Council on October 10, 2005.  The City is requesting $100,000 in 
Community Legacy funding for the “Bates Heritage Youth Development Park,” as the 
project is in the Bates Community Legacy Area and is thus eligible for funding.  
 
The Boys and Girls Club has been working with the Cal Ripken Foundation and the 
Anne Arundel County Department of Recreation and Parks to refurbish the current 
recreation area at the Wiley H. Bates Legacy Center.  Improvements to the current 
athletic fields will include a new baseball diamond with dugout, soccer, a field for 
football, lacrosse, and field hockey, a roof for the outdoor basketball court, concession 
stand, and boardwalk.   
 
The total project cost is $1.2 million dollars.  The design is complete and the Boys and 
Girls Club has already received $350,000 in State Bond funds and $350,000 from the 
Cal Ripken Foundation. The County will provide a long-term lease.  DHCD requires a 
local contribution, not a prescribed match.  The local contribution for this project will 
come from the Boys and Girls Club and includes the $350,000 from the Cal Ripken 
Foundation. The City's contribution will be in-kind staff time for submitting the proposal, 
processing payments and submitting reports if the project is funded. 
 
 
Prepared by Theresa Wellman, Chief of Community Development in Planning and 
Zoning at TCW@annapolis.gov and Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in 
the Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov  

Page 176



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-32-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Alderman Israel 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12   10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Transportation 7/9/12   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

Establishing the Hillman Garage Advisory Committee 10 

FOR the purpose of establishing the Hillman Garage Advisory Committee and specifying the 11 
process for appointing members of the Committee. 12 

WHEREAS, the Noah Hillman Parking Garage is a City-owned facility which was 13 
constructed in 1972; and 14 

 15 
WHEREAS, the Noah Hillman Parking Garage is vital to the business community, the faith 16 

community and the general public; and 17 
 18 

WHEREAS, the City of Annapolis has been advised that the Noah Hillman Parking Garage 19 
is nearing the end of its useful life; and 20 

 21 
WHEREAS, it is essential that the users of this garage be consulted about the least 22 

disruptive alternative while the garage is being reconstructed, about the 23 
possibility of parking more vehicles in the reconstructed facility, and the best 24 
arrangement for managing the garage. 25 

 26 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that there is 27 
established the Hillman Garage Advisory Committee to provide recommendations to the City of 28 
Annapolis on the reconstruction of the Noah Hillman Parking Garage. 29 

 30 
 31 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the Committee 32 
shall consist of nine members who have a demonstrated interest in the reconstruction of the 33 
Noah Hillman Parking Garage. 34 
 35 
 36 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the Mayor 37 
shall appoint the members of the Committee subject to confirmation by the City Council. 38 

Page 177



R-32-12 
Page 2 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 1 
 2 
 3 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 4 
 5 

EXPLANATION 6 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 7 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 8 
Underlining indicates amendments.  9 

Page 178



R-32-12 
Page 3 

Policy Report 1 
 2 

R-32-12 3 
 4 

 5 
Establishing the Hillman Garage Advisory Committee 6 

The proposed resolution would establish the Hillman Garage Advisory Committee and 7 
the process for appointing members to the Committee. 8 

 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 13 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  14 

 15 

Page 179



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-34-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12   10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 7/9/12   

Public Safety 7/9/12   

 8 
 9 
A RESOLUTION concerning 10 

Establishing a Fine for Violations of Distributing Unsolicited Materials 11 

FOR the purpose of establishing a fine for violations of distributing unsolicited materials. 12 

 13 

WHEREAS, proposed ordinance O-16-12 amends the Code of the City of Annapolis by 14 
regulating litter caused by the distribution of unsolicited materials; and 15 

 16 
WHEREAS, O-16-12 authorizes the City Council to establish a fine for violating the ordinance.  17 
 18 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that that the 19 
Fines Schedule is hereby amended as follows: 20 

 21 

Section in 
Code 

 
Section Name 

 
Fine for Initial Offense

Fine for Repeat or 
Continuous Violations

11.36.025 LITTERING – 
UNSOLICITED 
MATERIALS 

$250 PER VIOLATION 
PER DAY. 

$250 PER VIOLATION 
PER DAY. 

 22 
 23 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this resolution 24 
shall take effect on the date of adoption. 25 
 26 
 27 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 28 
 29 
 30 

Page 180



R-34-12 
Page 2 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 1 
 2 

EXPLANATION 3 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 4 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 5 
Underlining indicates amendments.  6 

Page 181



R-34-12 
Page 3 

Policy Report 1 
 2 

R-34-12 3 
 4 

 5 
Establishing a Fine for Violations of Distributing Unsolicited Materials 6 

The proposed resolution would establish a fine for violations of distributing unsolicited 7 
materials.  Proposed ordinance O-16-12 amends the Code of the City of Annapolis by 8 
regulating litter caused by the distribution of unsolicited materials and O-16-12 9 
authorizes the City Council to establish a fine for violating the ordinance.  10 

 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 15 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  16 

 17 

Page 182



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-35-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12   10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Finance 7/9/12   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

Correcting the FY 2013 Fee for Reserved Dockage 10 

FOR the purpose of correcting the FY 2013 fee for reserved dockage per the City of 11 
Annapolis Harbormaster. 12 

WHEREAS, the FY 2013 fee schedule was adopted on June 4, 2012 and inadvertently did 13 
not include the proposed fee change for reserved dockage as requested by the 14 
Harbormaster’s Office. 15 

 16 
 17 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the FY 18 
2013 fee schedule shall be revised as follows: 19 

 20 

Section Type of Fee Amount of 
Fee FY 2013 

15.10.020 Fees—No Prorating (checkout 12 noon or upon departure, whichever comes 
first).  3 hour minimum after 5:00 p.m. 

 

 Docking Fee  

 Hourly  

 Up to 3 hours, up to 40 feet LOA, includes showers and electricity, per hour $8.00 

 Up to 3 hours, over 40 feet LOA, up to 60 feet LOA, includes showers and 
electricity, per hour 

$10.00 

 Up to 3 hours, 60 or greater feet LOA, includes showers and electricity, per 
hour 

$15.00 

 Over 3 hours or after 2000 (8:00 p.m.) Daily fee or 
balance 
thereof 

Page 183



R-35-12 
Page 2 

 Daily (over 3 hours or after 8 p.m.) Includes showers, and limited e-mail, per 
foot LOA, minimum $40 

$2.25 

 Reserved Dockage- (west side only) per foot per day [$3.00] 
$3.25 

 Paid in advance  

 Dock Utilities  

 Transient:  

 Each 15 Amp Outlet(per day) $5.00 

 Each 30 Amp Outlet(per day) $8.00 

 Each 50 Amp Outlet(per day) $15.00 

 Winter Monthly:  

 Each 15 Amp Outlet(per month) $75.00 

 Each 30 Amp Outlet(per month) $120.00 

 Each 50 Amp Outlet(per month) $225.00 

 Public Mooring Fee (showers and limited e-mail. Moorings limited to 
maximum boat size 35’). 

 

 St. Mary’s Cove:  

 Hourly $25.00 

 Daily $25.00 

 Weekly $150.00 

 Monthly $375.00 

 Public Mooring Fee (showers and limited e-mail.  Moorings limited to 
maximum boat size 55’). 

 

 Hourly $35.00 

 Daily $35.00 

 Weekly $210.00 

 Monthly $525.00 

 Public Mooring Fee – All Others (showers and limited e-mail.  Moorings 
limited to maximum boat size 45’). 

 

 Hourly $30.00 

 Daily $30.00 

 Weekly $180.00 

 Monthly $450.00 

 Winter Fees  

 Winter Docking Fees (May be prorated at Harbormaster’s Option)  

Page 184



R-35-12 
Page 3 

 Storage per month, per foot LOD $7.00 

 Fees—Vessels up to 17 LOA, and less than 25 horsepower, at all public City 
Facilities except (1)City Dock slips and bulkheads, and (2)City Public 
Moorings Dinghies to 17 feet. Must demonstrably be in use as tender to 
larger vessel to obtain permission to dock. 

 

 Transient (no more than 48 hours consecutive docking) no charge 

 At City Dinghy Dock and all public street endings and park docks per foot per 
year  

 

 At any City public mooring, see Summer and Winter Public Mooring Fees, 
above 

 

 Storage (more than 48 hours consecutive docking)  

 Dinghies up to 12 feet at all public street endings, bulkheads, and park docks 
per foot per year in advance for sticker (included in private mooring fee) 

no charge 

 Dinghies greater than 12 feet and up to 17 feet at all public street endings, 
bulkheads, and park docks per foot per year in advance for sticker (included 
in private mooring fee) 

no charge 

 Fees—Commercial Operations—Year Round  

 Passenger Carrying—Slips may be reserved in advance, moorings shall not 
be used: 

 

 Leased operations, minimum per foot per year at assigned spaces  

 Occasional charter, subject to terms of Charter Policy, per foot LOD per trip 
at charter dock or other space assigned by Harbormaster 

$2.50 

 After 90 minutes, per foot per hour $0.25 

 Commercial Fishing, Crabbing, or Oystering—no reserved slips  

 Workboat actively engaged with certificate, current receipts, and current DNR 
number, per month, moorings shall not be used 

$60.00 

 Buyboat actively engaged with certificate, current receipts, and current DNR 
number, per month, moorings shall not be used 

$110.00 

 Fees—Private Moorings—May not be prorated:  

 Waiting List Application $50.00 

 Private mooring application fee $50.00 

 Private mooring permit fee, resident, per year $750.00 

 Private mooring permit fee, non-resident, or commercial per year $1,500.00 

 Street end dinghy permit (available only on medical hardship), annual $50.00 

 Fees—Miscellaneous Services:  

 FAX incoming, first page $2.00 

 FAX incoming, after first page $1.00 

 FAX Outgoing, first page $3.00 

Page 185



R-35-12 
Page 4 

 FAX Outgoing, after first page $2.00 

 FAX international surcharge in addition to above fees $5.00 

 Copies per page $0.25 

 Showers for anchored boaters per person (Not provided for non-boaters) $1.00 

 Holding Tank Pumpouts, up to first 50 gallons $5.00 

 Holding Tank Pumpouts, after 50 gallons, per gallon $0.10 

 Doubled Fees for vessels found in violation of Title 15 of the City Code, other 
delinquency fees 

 

 In addition to prescribed fines, and applicable towing / storage fees, any 
accrued fees named herein shall be doubled for any vessel found in violation 
of any provision of Title 15. 

accrued fees 
doubled 

 Late payment of winter storage fees (after 5th of the month) $50.00 

 Late payment of private mooring fees (after March 20th) $150.00 

 Note: Exceptions to fees named herein may only be granted per City Code 
15.10.020 and 6.04.210 

 

 1 
 2 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this resolution 3 
shall be effective on the date of adoption. 4 
 5 
 6 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 7 
 8 
 9 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 10 
 11 

EXPLANATION 12 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 13 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 14 
Underlining indicates amendments.  15 

Page 186



R-35-12 
Page 5 

Policy Report 1 
 2 

R-35-12 3 
 4 

Correcting the FY 2013 Fee for Reserved Dockage 5 

 6 
The proposed resolution would correct the FY 2013 fee for reserved dockage per the 7 
City of Annapolis Harbormaster.  The FY 2013 fee schedule was adopted on June 4, 8 
2012 and inadvertently did not include the proposed fee change for reserved dockage 9 
as requested by the Harbormaster’s Office. 10 

 11 

 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 16 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  17 

 18 

Page 187



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-37-12 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Alderwoman Finlayson 6 
 7 

Co-Sponsored by: Mayor Cohen 8 
 9 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

7/9/12   10/8/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 7/9/12   

 10 
A RESOLUTION concerning 11 

Authorizing the Annual Kunta Kinte Festival as an Official City of Annapolis Co-12 
Sponsored Event 13 

FOR the purpose of authorizing the annual Kunta Kinte festival as an official co-sponsored 14 
City of Annapolis event due to its importance and significance as a central element in 15 
our City’s history and the unique connection that Annapolis shares with Kunta Kinte. 16 

WHEREAS, Kunta Kinte has become a local, national and international symbol of African 17 
American family history grounded in the slave trade of which Annapolis was a 18 
location of importation and sale; and 19 

 20 
WHEREAS, Kunta Kinte and many of his descendents were themselves slaves and their 21 

history as slaves in Annapolis and Anne Arundel County is an integral part of 22 
who we are as a City, a County and a State; and 23 

 24 
WHEREAS, Kunta Kinte’s legacy is unique to Annapolis, a legacy begun at City Dock 25 

where slaves were sold at market and where African Americans have worked 26 
and lived for generations—free and slave; and 27 

 28 
WHEREAS, Kunta Kinte-Alex Haley Memorial located at City Dock is visited by one million 29 

people a year from all over the world and has become a vibrant part of our 30 
historic City’s attraction to residents and visitors alike; and 31 

 32 
WHEREAS, Kunta Kinte-Alex Haley Memorial is the site of an annual ceremony held on 33 

the anniversary date of Kunta Kinte’s arrival in Annapolis as a slave, honoring 34 
the memory of our City’s African American ancestors and celebrating the 35 
struggle of many ethnic groups to keep strong their culture and heritage; and 36 

 37 

Page 188



R-37-12 
Page 2 

WHEREAS, Kunta Kinte-Alex Haley Memorial is, this year, celebrating the 10th 1 
Anniversary of the completion of the Memorial, a process begun in 1981 with 2 
the dedication of a plaque commemorating Kunta Kinte’s arrival in 1767; and 3 

 4 
WHEREAS, Kunta Kinte Festival is held every year to celebrate African American family 5 

roots and the diversity of culture in our community; and 6 
 7 
WHEREAS, Keeping the Kunta Kinte Festival as a vital part of City community life and 8 

culture is a central element in City Government’s acknowledgement and 9 
celebration of our City’s historic and cultural significance; and 10 

 11 
WHEREAS,    Section 7.40.090 of the City Code allows the City Council to designate certain 12 

days when peddlers, hawkers and itinerant merchants may sell in the Historic 13 
District or a nonresidential area. 14 

 15 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the Kunta 16 
Kinte Festival shall be co-sponsored by the City as an annual event to be held at City Dock in 17 
recognition of the significance and enduring legacy of Kunta Kinte to the City of Annapolis.  18 
 19 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the City may 20 
waive full fees associated with this event at its discretion. 21 
 22 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the Kunta 23 
Kinte festival, or its designee, is required to obtain all City permits determined necessary for the 24 
safe execution of the event when those elements are required for the execution of the festival=s 25 
activities. 26 
 27 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this resolution 28 
authorizes the annual Kunta Kinte festival as a time when vendors may sell merchandise in the 29 
Historic District that is consistent with the mission and purpose of the Kunta Kinte festival. 30 
 31 
 32 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 33 
 34 
 35 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 36 
 37 

EXPLANATION 38 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 39 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 40 
Underlining indicates amendments.  41 

Page 189



R-37-12 
Page 3 

Policy Report 1 
 2 

R-37-12 3 
 4 
 5 

Authorizing the Annual Kunta Kinte Festival as an Official City of Annapolis Co-6 
Sponsored Event 7 

The proposed resolution would authorize the annual Kunta Kinte festival as an official 8 
co-sponsored City of Annapolis event due to its importance and significance as a 9 
central element in our City’s history and the unique connection that Annapolis shares 10 
with Kunta Kinte.  The proposed resolution would also authorize vendors in the Historic 11 
District that are consistent with the Kunta Kinte festival’s mission and purpose and 12 
waive full fees associated with the festival at the City’s discretion. 13 

 14 
 15 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 16 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  17 

 18 

Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199


	7-9-12 Agenda 
	7-9-12 Public Hearing and HACA
	June 2012 Minutes #1
	June 2012 Minutes #2
	O-25-12 7pm Meetings
	O-25-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	O-51-11 C2 Zoning
	O-51-11 Proposed Amendments
	O-51-11 Fiscal Impact Note
	O-51-11 Policy Note
	O-51-11 Planning Commission
	O-51-11 Staff report
	O-51-11 Rules and Economic Matters
	O-52-11 Fawcett's
	O-52-11 Proposed Amendments
	O-52-11 Fiscal Impact Note
	O-52-11 Policy Note
	O-52-11 Planning Commission
	O-52-11 Rules and Economic Matters
	O-52-11 Maritime Advisory Board
	O-7-12 Variances
	O-7-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	O-7-12 Policy Note
	O-7-12 Planning Commission
	O-7-12 staffreport
	O-7-12 Rules
	O-16-12 Unsolicited Materials
	O-16-12 Amendments
	O-16-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	O-16-12 Public Safety
	R-19-12 Maynard-Burgess
	R-19-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	R-19-12 Finance
	R-19-12 Rules
	R-29-12 Trash Fee
	R-29-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	R-30-12 Pension Task Force
	R-31-12 Bates Grant
	R-32-12 Hillman Garage
	R-34-12 Unsolicited Materials Fine
	R-35-12 Dockage Fee
	R-37-12 Kunta Kinte Festival
	Chief of Police Contract



